
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Council Chamber, The White House, Hockcliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD. 

Friday, 15 February 2019 
 
To:  Members of the Policy & Finance Committee (Councillors E Wallace, S Jones, 
R Berry, S Cotter, K Cursons, S Cursons, A Dodwell, K Ferguson, M Freeman, 
F Kharawala, C Palmer and G Perham) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Policy & Finance Committee to be 
held on Monday, 25 February 2019 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, 
The White House, Hockcliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, 
LU7 1HD..  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 i)  Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on the 

agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 1(f) and 1(h). 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


POLICY & FINANCE COMMITTEE Monday, 25 February 2019 
 

 

 

 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 8) 

 

 To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Policy & Finance 
Committee meeting held on 21 January 2019. 
 

5.   COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN (Pages 9 - 12) 

 

 To receive and note progress with the Committee objectives and work plan for 
2018-2019 (attached). 
 

6.   FEBRUARY 2019 PAYMENTS  

 

 To receive and note the schedule of payments made in February 2019 
(attached) (approved for payment by the Town Clerk and two bank signatories). 
 

7.   COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE (Pages 13 - 28) 

 

 To receive and note an update report regarding communications (attached). 
 

8.   I.T. UPDATE (Pages 29 - 32) 

 

 To receive and note an update report regarding Information Technology 
(attached). 
 

9.   REVIEW OF TOWN COUNCIL/EMPLOYEE MEMBERSHIPS (Pages 33 - 34) 

 

 To receive and note current Town Council memberships (attached). 
 

10.   EARMARKED RESERVES (Pages 35 - 40) 

 

 To consider the recommendations made by the Cultural & Economic Services 
Committee at its meeting held 10 December 2018 (minute reference 153/CE): 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
1.1 recommend to Policy and Finance to carry forward into earmarked 

reserves unspent monies from financial year 2018/2019 from budget 
codes 4412, 4509 and 4554 for reasons set out in para 2.3. 

1.2 recommend to Policy and finance to carry forward existing earmarked 
reserves for reasons set out in para 2.4.2, in APPENDIX B, for budget 
codes 9018, 9020, 9022, 9026, 9028 9055. 

 

11.   INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT (Pages 41 - 50) 

 

 To receive the Interim Update Internal Audit report dated 24 and 25 January 
2019 (attached). 
 



POLICY & FINANCE COMMITTEE Monday, 25 February 2019 
 

 

 

12.   FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND (Pages 51 - 52) 

 

 To receive and consider correspondence dated 5 February 2019 from Central 
Bedfordshire Council (attached) in respect of the Future High Street Fund. 
 

13.   POLICE CRIME COMMISSIONER CORRESPONDENCE (Pages 53 - 54) 

 

 To receive and consider correspondence dated 11 February 2019 from the 
Police Crime Commissioner (attached). 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 172 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

21 JANUARY 2019 AT 1930 HOURS 
 

Present Councillors:  S Jones 
S Cotter  
C Palmer 
G Perham 
A Dodwell 
K Ferguson 
R Berry 
J M Freeman 
K Cursons 
S Ward 

      
Also in attendance:  M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 

S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central 
Services) 
C Cummins (Finance Officer) 
I Haynes (Head of Grounds and Environmental 
Services) 
M Jahn (Committee Officer) 

   
Members of the public:  0 
 

431/PF APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors E Wallace and F 

Kharawala. 
 
432/PF DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting. No declarations were made. 
 

433/PF QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
 There were no questions from the public. 

 
434/PF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

The Committee received the minutes of the Policy and Finance Committee 
meeting held on 19 November 2018 for consideration. 
 
Minute reference 414/PF Minutes of previous meeting (Land East of 
Leighton Linslade): the Town Clerk confirmed a meeting had taken place 
with representatives of Eggington Parish council but no reply had been 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Policy & Finance       21 JANUARY 2019 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                                            Page 
 
 

173 

received from them regarding a further meeting.  The Town Clerk would 
write to Brian Dunleavy of Central Bedfordshire Council showing an 
expression of interest and support of a boundary review. 
 
Minute reference 423/PF Parsons Close Refreshment Concession: it was 
confirmed a planning application had been submitted to Central 
Bedfordshire Council and a Licence Agreement was being created with a 
provisional opening date in April 2019.  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Policy and Finance Committee 
meeting held on 19 November 2018 be approved as a correct record 
and were signed accordingly.  
 

435/PF      SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
The Committee received the draft minutes of the Standing Orders Task & 
Finish Group 26 November 2018. 
 
It was noted that one point required clarification: that the task group had not 
specified that the Chairs of standing committees should not also Chair other 
Committees, Sub-Committees or task groups, but specifically that the Chair 
of a Standing Committee should not also Chair one of that Committee’s 
Sub-Committees or task groups.  It was agreed that this be amended.  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Standing Orders Task and Finish 
group meeting held on 26 November 2018 be approved as a correct 
record, subject to the amendment above, and were signed 
accordingly.  
 
The Committee received the draft minutes of the Personnel Sub-Committee 
held on the 7 January 2019. 

 
RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Personnel Sub-
Committee held on 7 January 2019. 
 
RESOLVED to approve the revised Employee Handbook.  
 
The Committee received the draft minutes of the Community Safety Sub-
Committee 14 January 2019. 
 
Item 21/CS Operation Dodford: a question was raised regarding the 
wording of recommendation 1.2.  The wording was amended to ‘In 
consultation with the Chair of the Community Safety Sub-Committee, that 
delegated powers be afforded to the Town Clerk to make decision on any 
community-based project(s) to a TOTAL maximum value of £2,500. 

 
RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Community Safety Sub 
Committee held on 14 January 2019. 

 

Page 2



Policy & Finance       21 JANUARY 2019 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                                            Page 
 
 

174 

      436/PF    GENERAL GRANT APPLICATION 
 

The Committee received and considered a late application for General 
Grant funding from Reclaim Life.  Members agreed to award the grant as 
all required criteria were met and budget available. 
 
RESOLVED to 
 
1.1 note the report 

1.2 approve the General Grant application for £500 submitted by 

Reclaim Life, in accordance with General Grant guidelines. 

 
437/PF COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN  
 
  The Committee received a report summarising the key responsibilities of 

the Committee, as well as the objectives within the Town Council’s Three 
Year Plan 2015-2018 which fell within the remit of the Committee.   

 
 RESOLVED to note the Committee Work Plan and Objectives for 2018- 
 2019. 

 
438/PF TOWN CRIER 

 
 The Committee received and considered a report to formalise 

arrangements regarding the role of the Town Crier funded through existing 
budget (101/4920) and following recruitment, additional budget would be 
allocated to pay the cost of having garments made. 

 
 RESOLVED to  
 

1.1 endorse the Rules for the Town Crier as set out. 
1.2 endorse a proportion of the existing budget to the sum of £300 

(101/4920) be set aside on an annual basis to provide subsistence 
as per formal arrangements for supporting the Town Crier role. 

  
  439/PF    STANDING ORDERS 

 
The Committee received and considered an updated report regarding 
Standing Orders to reflect compliance with recent legislation and a format 
in keeping with the national NALC Model. The change agreed upon 
receiving the minutes of the Task and Finish group (see Minute Reference 
435/PF) would be incorporated.  

 
Recommended to Council approval of draft updated Standing Orders, 
in accordance with the 2018 revised NALC Model and per the 
recommendations of the Standing Orders Task and Finish group 
meeting held on 26 November 2018. 

 
 

Page 3



Policy & Finance       21 JANUARY 2019 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                                            Page 
 
 

175 

440/PF    DECEMBER AND JANUARY PAYMENTS 
 

The Committee received a schedule of payments which had previously 
been approved for payment by the Town Clerk and countersigned by two 
account signatories.  No written questions had been received prior to the 
meeting.    
 
The schedule for November dated 19 November 2018, included BACS 
payments amounting to £123,158.04 (page numbers 2462, 2465 – 2476, 
2477) and cheque payments amounting to £2,421.94 (cheque numbers 
17299-17306), including White House petty cash amounting to £138.02, 
Astral Park £185.41 and TACTIC £26.35 
 
The monthly salaries listing for 2018 amounting to £94,119.83 gross was 
received.  A cash book report for November 2018, including details of all 
direct debit payments, was also received. 
 
The schedule for December dated 11 December 2018, included BACS 
payments amounting to £108,051.00 (page numbers 2479 - 2487) and 
cheque payments amounting to £4,125.48 (cheque numbers 17307-
17313), , including White House petty cash amounting to £95.54, Astral 
Park £69.89 and TACTIC £36.70. 
 
The monthly salaries listing for December 2018 amounting to £100,922.92 
gross was received.  A cash book report for December 2018, including 
details of all direct debit payments, was also received.  

 
It was noted that all payments had been made within the budget and that 
there were no irregularities to be drawn to the attention of the Committee.  

 
RESOLVED to note the schedule of accounts for December 2018 and 
January 2019  

 
      RESOLVED to note the report. 

 
  441/PF   NINE MONTH BUDGET MONITORING REPORT  
 

The Committee received a nine month budgeting report for the period April 
– December 2018 and a verbal update was provided on a number of points.  

 
RESOLVED to note the report. 

 
442/PF BUCKINGHAM PALACE GARDEN PARTY  

 
The Committee received information from the Bedfordshire Association of 
Town and Parish Councils regarding the annual nomination for the Summer 
2019 Garden Party.  
 

Page 4



Policy & Finance       21 JANUARY 2019 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                                            Page 
 
 

176 

RESOLVED to nominate the previous year’s Town Mayor, Cllr S 
Rahman, for the draw to attend the 2019 Buckingham Palace Garden 
Party.  
 

443/PF 2019-2020 RISK REGISTER AND ACTION PLAN  
 

The Committee received a report regarding the Town Council Risk Register 
and Action Plan for 2019-2020 and considered the recommendations 
contained therein. No questions were raised in respect of the Risk Register 
or the proposed Action Plan.  

 
RESOLVED to note the report.  
 
RECOMMENDED to Council to approve the Risk Register and Action 

Plan for 2019-2020, to be signed by the Town Mayor and Responsible 
Financial Officer. 
 

444/PF CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2019-2020  
 
 The Committee received a draft Calendar of Meetings for the municipal year 

2019-2020 for consideration, based on the committee structure and 
meeting frequency approved by Council in June 2016. 

 
RECOMMENDED to Council to approve the proposed Calendar of 
Meetings for the municipal year 2019-2020 (see Appendix A).  

  
445/PF 2019-2020 BUDGET  
 
 The Committee received a report for the budget setting process 2019-2020. 

The budget was predicated on committee budgets which had been 
reviewed and endorsed by Town Council Standing Committees during 
November/December. The budget had been developed to achieve a 0% 
increase in council tax which had remained the same for the 7th consecutive 
year. 

  
 
 RESOLVED to  
 

1.1 note the report 

1.2 recommend to Council the approval of the precepting amount of 

£2,162,328 which Central Bedfordshire Council will collect on 

behalf of the Town Council for the Financial Year 2019-2020. 

1.3 Recommend to Council that the Council Tax of £149.58 (Band D 

equivalent) is unchanged for the Financial Year 2019-20 meaning it 

has remained the same for the 7th consecutive years. 

 

 

 

 

Page 5



Policy & Finance       21 JANUARY 2019 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                                            Page 
 
 

177 

446/PF DRAFT OBJECTIVES (TOWN COUNCIL STRATEGIC PLAN 2019-2024)  
 

The Committee received and considered a report regarding future 
objectives obtained during the recent resident’s survey for inclusion in the 
Town Council’s next Five Year Plan. 
 
RESOLVED to note the proposed objectives in relation to operational 
efficiency and growth.  

 
447/PF EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 
  RESOLVED that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) 

Act 1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential 
nature of the business about to be transacted which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.  The public and press to withdraw 
from the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion 
regarding: 

 
448/PF  2019 HONORARY BURGESS NOMINATIONS  
 
 The Committee received and considered a recommendation made by the 

Grants & Awards Sub-Committee on 5 November 2018. 
 

 RECOMMENDED to Council to approve the nomination of Mr Peter 

Hailes for the 2019 Honorary Burgess award. 

449/PF MONIES OWING TO THE TOWN COUNCIL  
 
 The Committee received and considered a report to endorse the recovery 

of unpaid market rent.   
 
 RESOLVED to endorse the commissioning of a Small Claims Court to 

recoup market rent owed as well as any costs associated with the 
recovery of the arrears. 

 
 450/PF    PAGES PARK PAVILION  
 

The Committee received and considered a report regarding the Pages Park 
Pavilion Refurbishment recommended by the Grounds and Environmental 
Services Committee at its meeting held on the 3 December 2018. 
 
RESOLVED to 
 
1.1 note the report 

1.2 recommend to the Council that the following costs are allocated for 

the full refurbishment of the Pages Park Pavilion: 

i) Preliminary     £15,000.00 

ii) Internal alternations   £131,290.00 

iii) External alterations   £43,740.00 

Page 6



Policy & Finance       21 JANUARY 2019 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                                            Page 
 
 

178 

iv) Drainage     £30,600.00 

v) Mechanical and Electrical  £107,200.00 

vi) Decorations     £11,400.00 

vii) Ancillary     £11,450.00 

viii) Contingency    £10,000.00 

Minus external funding secured already £30,000.00 

 

TOTAL      £330,680.00 

 
The meeting closed at 2040 hours.    
 
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 21 JANUARY 2019. 
 
 
 
 
Chair             25 FEBRUARY 2019 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

 Page 1 of 3 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE – 25 FEBRUARY 2019 

WORK PLAN 2018-2019 (INCORPORATING OBJECTIVES 2015-2018) 
 

Policy & Finance Strategic Objectives for 2015-2018 (from Town Council Three Year Plan) 
 

Objective 
ref.no. (3 
Yr Plan) 

Objective Timescale Comments 

1 Review options related to the future premises to house 
the Town Council and secure accommodation.  

31st March 2017  Depot Accommodation:- Short terms strategy 
agreed 
Negotiations ongoing in respects of Town Council 
accommodation.    

8 Investigate and develop online payments and bookings 
for all Council services. 

Payments – 31st March 
2017 
 

Town Council is accepting online payments via 
WorldPay. 
Agreed that online bookings are not currently a 
viable option but intention is to trial online 
ticketing.    

15 Expand and consolidate opportunities for two-way 
dialogue with residents and ensure greater community 
engagement in, and awareness of, Town Council 
activity. 

Annual & ongoing Website revisions, About Town delivered in July to 
all households, increased social media presence 
(number of posts and number of followers). 
Development of promotional short videos. 

15 (a) Creation and adoption of website development plan January 2018 
Deferred until 2018-19 

Websites to be reviewed in full during 2018-19, 
following appointment of a support provider. 
Proposals for future development to be brought to 
committee before end of 2018.  

15 (b) Creation and adoption of communications strategy November 2017 Nov 2017 update: now split into two documents, 
an internal Communications protocol and an 
external Community Engagement/Consultation 
Strategy. Consultation held on draft revised 
Engagement Strategy – recommended for 
approval. 

 Policies: review/update/develop Home working 
protocol, Business continuity plans for Astral Park and 
TACTIC, Community Emergency Plan 

 
April 2018 

Home working protocol established Oct 2017. 
Business continuity plans updated for 2018. 
Awaiting input from external volunteer consultant 
in respect of Emergency Plan.  

 Data Protection: review procedures and amend as 
required to comply with General Data Protection 

 
April 2018  

Significant progress made incl staff training, 
review of IT security, development of policies and 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5



 

 Page 2 of 3 

Regulations (effective May 2018) procedures. DPO audit scheduled for 4 
September. 

 I.T. infrastructure: develop clear timescales for 
hardware & software upgrades, server replacement, 
review of storage and network arrangements 

 
September 2018 

New server installed, back up solution under 
review, new hardware ordered, network switches 
upgraded.  Email move to Office 365 completed 
and enhanced to include 21 x Cllr email 
addresses. Old server has been decommissioned. 

 Budget process for 2019-20 January 2019  Underway.  

 Community safety: review effectiveness of current 
expenditure and options for alternative measures 

January 2019 Through the Community Safety Sub Committee 

 

 Objectives 2,3,4,5,6,17 & 23 from Three Year Plan completed and removed from work plan.  
 

WORK PLAN 2018-2019 
 

Meeting Date Regular Updates Work Plan 2018-2019 

18 June 2018  Town Mayor’s Accounts 2017-2018 
Annual accounts and governance statement 
Revised Community Engagement Strategy 
 

30 July 2018  3-month budget 
monitoring 
 

Approval of budget timeline for 2019-20 budget  
Insurance claims 2017-18 
Data protection update 
Asset register 
 

17 September 2018 Communications 
update 
 

Review priority projects for inclusion in 2019-20 budget 
External auditor’s report for 2017-18 
Business Risk action plan update 
Modern.gov: review of first three months 
Community Emergency Plan deferred due to ill health of co-ordinator 
Standing Orders review 
Community Engagement Strategy 

19 November 2018  6-month budget 
monitoring 
5 year financial plan 

Review priority projects for inclusion in 2019-2020 budget 
Review of salary budget for 2019-20 
Website development plan and hosting/support provider review 
I.T. review and budget recommendations 
 

P
age 10



 

 Page 3 of 3 

21 January 2019  
 
 

9-month budget 
monitoring 

Recommend to Council the budget and precept for 2019-2020  
Consider Honorary Burgess 2019 nomination/s 
Business Risk Register & Action Plan for 2019-2020 
Recommendations from Police Liaison in respect of Community Safety  
 

25 February 2019  
 
 

Communications 
update 
 

Draft Calendar of Meetings 2019-2020 
Review Town Council/employee memberships 
Annual review of Financial regulations, Standing Orders and System of internal control 
Modern.gov/IT update 
 

15 April 2019 
 
  

12-month budget 
monitoring report 

Annual Report 2018-2019 
Review of Committee Objectives 2018-19; Setting provisional Committee Objectives 2019-
2020 
Review arrangements with local authorities. 
 

 

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



 
 
 
Policy and Finance Committee      

 
Date:  February 2019 
 
Title:     Communications Update  
 
Purpose of the Report: To update Members in respect of Town 

Council Communications. 
  
Contact Officer:  Amy Holden, Senior Administration Officer 
 

 

Corporate 
Objective/s 

 Leighton-Linslade Town Council Three 
Year Plan: Objective 15: to expand and 
consolidate opportunities for two-way 
dialogue with residents and ensure greater 
community engagement in, and awareness 
of, Town Council activity. 

Implications:   

Human Resources  X None  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

X None  

Procedural/Legal X None  

Financial  X None  

 
1. RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

Should members be minded, the proposals are: 
 
1.1 To note the report. 

 
2. CONTEXT 
 
2.1 As a publicly funded body, Leighton-Linslade Town Council has a duty to 

actively engage with the local community, providing information regarding 
its activities and proposed future projects, seeking feedback from 
residents and raising awareness of the Council and its remit within the 
Parish. 

 
2.2 Historically, community engagement has taken place through a variety of 

forums including a printed newsletter, public consultation exercises, a 
website and community events.  

 
2.3 More recently, following the rapid developments in technology and the 

advent of the Localism Agenda and e-Government, the Town Council has 
moved further towards electronic media, communicating with residents 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



through channels including LLTC Website, Facebook, Twitter, Mailchimp, 
Survey Monkey, YouTube and its own app.  

 
3. COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE 

 
3.1 To ensure we have a clear direction and to help improve efficiency a 

communications work plan has been created (see below) and will be 
included in all future communications update reports. Overall, it is clear 
that a multi-faceted approach is needed and that the range of tools we use 
for communication is continuing to expand.  
 

3.2 Website: Work is well underway on our website refresh project. Meetings 
have been held with the website provider and a structure agreed for the 
main LLTC website. Officers are working on refreshing the content and 
updating the images ready for the next phase.  
 
The website provider is now in the process of completing the wireframing 
step of the project which includes the building of the behind the scenes 
content management portal. This now includes the three integrated sites 
for LLTC, Astral Park and TACTIC. This new approach will allow for 
seamless administration to update all websites going forward.  
 
The next step will be design, we hope to see the first round of designs 
within the next week. Each website will receive a design refresh, all will 
follow a consistent theme but will carry some brand individuality to ensure 
they are viewed as separate entitles but are recognised as the larger LLTC 
suite of services.  
 

3.3 App: the LLTC app now has 253 active downloads and continues to be 
promoted via About Town and social media, as well as a dedicated panel 
on the homepage of the main LLTC website. 

 
3.4 Electronic signage: The remaining three signs were installed week 

commencing 4th February, all have been tested and are working. Content 
messages are being scheduled alongside our wider communications 
messaged using our shared digital content planner. 
 

3.5 KPI’S/Analytics: The data dashboard which pulls figure relating to all 4 
websites from google analytics has been in place since September. The 
reports are sent to us with a breakdown summary from our website 
provider. This information has been invaluable to us leading up to the 
website refresh project. It allows us to see what users of the sites are 
visiting the site for, where they are coming from and what they are 
spending their time looking at. 
 
Please see attached Januarys reports for your perusal.  
 
 

3.6 Branding: LLTC branding guidelines were established in 2015 but are 
now in the process of being updated to incorporate all the new branding 

Page 14



developed since that time, including Astral Park, TACTIC, the community 
events, children’s trail and street market branding. This will ensure that 
any parties promoting these assets will utilise the correct fonts, colours 
and branding messages in all marketing activity.   
 
We are currently working on refreshing TACTIC’s branding to create a 
more seamless and recognisable brand, to include logo and suite of 
documents including poster templates, letterheads etc. The improved 
branding will also be used within the new website design.  
 

3.7 Internal Processes: Internal processes are continually being worked on 
and improved to ensure well planned/written content is published via our 
website, social media platforms and published publications.  
 
As well as use of a digital content planner, an internal communications 
process has been created. This will provide a clear method for officers to 
follow to ensure key messages are getting out there in a pre-planned, 
organised manner.  
 
It will ensure each team is working simultaneously to improve project 
communication lead times. 

 
 

4. SOCIAL MEDIA UPDATE AND SUCCESSES  
 

 
4.1 Social media Campaigns: Our planned social media campaigns continue 

to grow and improve. This year’s Christmas Festival Event Social Media 
Campaign reached 197.2k people (this means the amount of people that 
had the event information appear on their screen). With 9.4k directly 
responding (this means commenting, sharing or clicking on 
going/interested). 

 
 

 
4.2 Content Planning: On average 30 posts are pre-planned and scheduled 

across 11 profiles (Facebook, Twitter and Instagram) per week this is 
excluding sharing, liking and commenting on partner organisation profiles.  
 

Page 15



4.3 KPI’s: Previously only the main LLTC social media profiles have had KPI 
goals attached, however we have now extended this to cover all Council 
owned profiles.  
 
For most KPIs we are relatively close to reach targets by April/ 
 
Now that we have six months of reports from Google Analytics in relation 
to website traffic, we will work on setting KPI’s from April for the next 
year. 
 

5.      CONCLUSION  
 

5.1 The continued engagement/reach as well as the results in the residents’           
survey undertaken in September/October clearly identify the websites and 
social media channels as key methods of communicating therefore the 
Town Council will continue to invest in them.  

      
 
 
 

Page 16



COMMUNICATIONS WORK PLAN  

Projects Objective Update Next steps 

LLTC Website  
www.leightonlinslade-
tc.gov.uk  

Continued development of the 
LLTC website.  
 
Currently working on website 
refresh which includes re-design of 
both look and structure.  
 
To include, online payments, 
improved latest function, what’s on 
section etc. 
 

Website refresh project 
underway, first stage of 
wireframing (building of 
backend administration portal) 
almost complete 
 
 

Awaiting design previews 
from website provider. 
 
Officers are working on 
refreshing content and 
preparing imagery ready for 
the input stage of the 
project.  

Astral Park Website   
www.astralpark.co.uk  

To better reflect Astral Park’s 
branding, provide key information 
for those searching online for a 
facility to host their activity, event, 
meeting or function. 

Website refresh project 
underway, first stage of 
wireframing (building of 
backend administration portal) 
almost complete 
 
 

Awaiting design previews 
from website provider. 
 
 

TACTIC Website   
www.tactic-centre.co.uk  

Complete overhaul of both design 
and content. 
 
TACTIC’s website was launched at 
the same time as the main LLTC 
website and has received few 
alterations.  
 

Website refresh project 
underway, first stage of 
wireframing (building of 
backend administration portal) 
almost complete 
 
Quotes received from 
illustrators to undertake 
branding refresh  

Awaiting first round of design 
proposals  
 
Final website sitemap to be 
confirmed, ideas include 
having dedicated sections of 
the site from the landing 
page for parents/guardians, 

P
age 17

http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/
http://www.astralpark.co.uk/
http://www.tactic-centre.co.uk/


Attention to be paid to branding, 
working alongside a illustrator to 
create a refresh to the current 
branding offering.  
 
 

 
 

care providers and young 
people.  
 
Contact chosen illustrator to 
begin brand refresh process 

Market Website  
www.leightonbuzzardmarket
.co.uk)  

The market website was launched 
in September 2017 as part of the 
market relaunch project. 

The trader section of the 
website has been developed 
and now includes an ‘apply’ 
page which includes all 
documents needed by a 
potential new trader.  
 
The page also includes an 
online contact us form.  

The next steps on the 
development plan include 
creating a dedicated ‘traders’ 
page which will include 
details on all traders: what 
they sell, links to their 
website and social media 
profiles. 
 
We are also in the process 
of changing the website 
layout to include a new ‘Our 
Markets’ page which we 
believe will provide users a 
clearer route to explore our 
speciality markets.  

Google Analytics 
Dashboard  

To create a personalised 
dashboard on our Google Analytics 
account to help monitor visitor and 
download stats. 

The data dashboard has now 
been implemented and 
monthly reports are received 
containing all planned KPI’s. 

Continue to monitor KPIs, 
add make changes to our 
communications dependent 
on results. 

Town Council App  To provide key information in a 
mobile friendly, easy to use format, 
including being able to send our 

We have 253 active users. 
The app now has a dedicated 
strip on the LLTC website 
homepage. 

Continue to build followers 
by promoting the app via 
social media and LLTC 

P
age 18

http://www.leightonbuzzardmarket.co.uk/
http://www.leightonbuzzardmarket.co.uk/


subscribers ‘Push Notifications’ 
(instant alerts). 
 

website and use the push 
notifications more.  

Communication strategy Due to the progression in the use of 
digital communication tools we feel 
now is the time to consider 
introducing a communications 
strategy.  
 
This will ensure we have a clear 
direction and processes for staff 
members to follow to ensure all 
departments are working towards 
the same goal. 

After some consideration it 
was decided that the strategy 
would work better as two 
documents: A community 
engagement strategy and an 
in-house communications 
process to be followed by 
officers. 

The Community 
Engagement Strategy is now 
endorsed.  
 
The In-house 
communications Protocol is 
in internal use.  

P
age 19



COMMUNICATIONS WORK PLAN  

 

Page 20



Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy and Finance Committee      

 
Date: 25 February 2019 
 
Title: I.T. update  

 
Purpose of the Report: To provide information in respect of I.T matters and 

budget.  
 
Contact Officer:                Sarah Sandiford, Head of Democratic & Central Services 
                                            
 

Corporate 
Objective/s 

 To consolidate processes and procedures, 
ensuring operational efficiency and a structure 
which will underpin future service delivery by 
the Town Council. 

Implications:   

Financial X None at present but changes to licensing are 
likely to have budgetary implications from 
2020-2021.  

Human Resources X  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

√ To continue to ensure operational efficiency 
and effective communications through the use 
of IT systems.  

Procedural/Legal X  

Risk/Health & Safety X  

 
 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

Should the Policy and Finance Committee be minded:- 
 
1.1 To note the report. 

 
1.2 To support the principle of continued investment into Information 

Technology through the five year financial plan.  
 

 
 
2 INVESTMENT  
 
2.1 As the Committee is aware, provision was made within the Council’s five year 

financial plan for £50,000 of investment into upgrading hardware, software and 
websites, as well as moving to paperless meetings. This investment was a 
reflection on the ever increasing reliance on and importance of computer systems 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



  

Page 2 of 3   

 

in undertaking day to day responsibilities as well as communicating with 
residents, partners and other stakeholders.      
 

2.2 With Committee approval, funds to date have been spent as follows: 
 

Predicted spend 2017/18 & 
2018/19 

2019/20 Comments 

Modern.gov install & licensing £9,000.00     

Modern.gov 2nd year costs   £7,250.00 thereafter in revenue budget 

IT upgrades: new server, email to Office 
365, backup, network switches, new 
hardware 

£14,006.00     

website development   £5,000.00 Refresh project, 
amalgamation of admin 
functions, TACTC redesign 

Town Council devices for use in meetings £3,300.00   15 ordered May 2018; more 
to follow in 2019  

one off websites migration costs £920.00     

one off additional O365  & server 
migration cost 

£875.00   costs higher due to 21 Cllrs 
now also using Outlook 365 
for email 

  £28,101.00 £12,250.00 £40,351.00 

 
 

2.3 The sum remaining from the allocated Future Projects budget is therefore 
£9,649.  
 

2.4 The intention is to use these funds within the financial year 2019-2020 for two 
purposes: firstly, to purchase any additional devices for use in meetings which 
might be required following the election of the new Council on 2 May and 
secondly, to address licensing issues for desktop computers in the White House, 
at Astral Park and at TACTIC. 
 

2.5 The Council has been advised by its retained IT provider that Microsoft 7 & 8 
operating systems will no longer be supported from mid January 2020. It is 
anticipated that this will result in loss of functionality and a move to upgraded 
software is recommended for all machines currently using these operating 
systems.  
 

2.6 Costs for the public-access computers based at TACTIC will be met from TACTIC 
budgets. 
 

2.7 Where funds allow, it has also been recommended that a number of desktop 
computers be upgraded or replaced due to their age.  
 

2.8 It is therefore anticipated that all remaining funds from the Future Projects 
allocated budget will be fully spent within the next financial year. 

 
 

Page 30



  

Page 3 of 3   

 

 
 

3. REVENUE BUDGET  
 
3.1 Further to the reports previously presented to committee, all central services 

budgets including IT and websites have been the subject of careful review in 
recent months.   

 
3.2 As agreed by Committee, budgets have been reduced where applicable to 

represent cost savings achieved through paperless meetings, with the cost 
saving transferred to meet the applicable licensing costs in future. The additional, 
indirect cost saving has been the increase in available resource, which has 
allowed the Central Services team to take on additional administrative functions.  

 
3.3 Officers are aware that with the changes in Microsoft licensing, revenue costs 

are likely to increase in the near future. Rather than purchasing a desktop 
computer with the appropriate licensing installed, users are now being asked to 
move to a monthly licensing cost. This monthly licence gives users access to 
either a cloud based or a locally based version of the Office applications.  Over 
time therefore, whilst the initial cost of replacement computers will be less, the 
ongoing monthly licensing costs will increase.  

 
3.3 Officers are also aware that a software review needs to be undertaken to 

determine whether the packages currently being used remain fit for purpose and 
cost effective. This includes software relating to finance, cemetery management, 
allotment management, desktop publishing, bookings management and 
potentially others, such as risk assessment. This is a significant piece of work 
which will not be considered further until such time as the current websites project 
has been completed.  

 
 
 4. CONCLUSIONS  
 

4.1 The funds allocated within the Council’s 5 year financial plan have enabled a 
number of upgrades to both hardware and software, including the significant 
initial investment into new software for meetings management.  

 
4.2 The costs for matters relating to I.T. will only continue to increase over time and 

consideration will need to be given to adequate provision within the annual 
revenue budget and/or five year financial plan from 2020 onwards.  

 
 
 
End.  

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



 
 
 
 
 
Policy and Finance Committee      

 
 
Date:    25 February 2019 
 
Title:   Town Council Memberships 
 
Purpose of the Report: To review the Council’s and/or         

employees’ memberships of other 
bodies 

 
Contact Officer: Clare Cummins - Finance Officer   
 

 
 
 
Corporate Objective/s  LLTC Three Year Plan – objective 6 
Implications:   

Financial √ Within existing budget 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

  

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   

 
 
 
 

1. RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
1.1 Should members be minded: 
 

To note the Town Council’s and/or employees’ memberships of other 
bodies. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 

 
2.1 The Town Council’s and/or employees’ memberships of other bodies were last 

reviewed by the Committee on 25 February 2019 and are due to be reviewed 
on an annual basis.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



 
  
 
2.2 The current memberships are as detailed below:   

 
 
  

 
Organisation 

Annual 
membership 
fee 

  

Bedfordshire/National Association 
of Town and Parish Councils 

 
£2,080 

Society of Local Council Clerks 
 

£427 

Institute of Cemetery and Crematorium 
Management 

 
£90 

Campaign for the Protection of Rural England 
 

£36 

Fields in Trust 
 

£50 

The Information Commissioner 
 

£55 

         NABMA (National Association of           
British Market Authorities)     

 
£318 

            Royal Town Planning Institute 
 

£309 

PSHE Association 
 

£41 

Arboricultural Association 
 

£189 

National Association of Local Councils 
 

£90 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



Cultural and Economic Services Committee     

Date:  10 December 2018

Title:  Budget update

Purpose of the Report: To monitor Committee budgets

Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Economic 
Development

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim 2. Objective 19
Implications:
Financial √ Existing budgets and proposed 

2019/20 budget.
Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

1. RECOMMENDATION/S

a. To recommend to Policy and Finance to carry forward into earmarked 
reserves unspent monies from financial year 2018/19 from budget codes 
for reasons set out in para. 2.3:  4412, 4509 and 4554.

b. To recommend to Policy and Finance to carry forward existing earmarked 
reserves for reasons set out at para. 2.4.2, in APPENDIX B, for budget 
codes 9018, 9020, 9022, 9026, 9028, 9055.

c. To recommend to Policy and Finance the proposed budget for 2019/20 as 
set out in APPENDIX C (attached).

2. BUDGET INFORMATION

2.2 Current year budget - Appendix A (attached) provides the 6-month budget 
account sheet for the 2018/19 financial year providing spend information to 
date.

2.3 It is recommended to Committee that it carries forward unspent budget relating 
to those listed below:

 Christmas Lights – 4412, to manage infrastructure maintenance.
 Children’s Trail – 4509, for maintenance and to fund social media 

support services.

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



 
 Community Access Defibrillators – 4554, as per Committee’s original 

endorsement, to create a reserve budget for kit supplies, maintenance 
etc after the initial 3 years of annual budget allocation. 

2.4 Earmarked reserves:

2.4.1 Code 9020 – a contribution of £1,936 was given to RELATE for counselling 
services based in TACTIC. The service is now withdrawn, and unspent money 
has now been refunded to the Council at £1,360. This amount will be utilised to 
contract a new service provider. 

2.4.2 2018/19, earmarked reserves. These are shown in the table at APPENDIX B 
(attached). 

2.5 The proposed annual budget for financial year 2019/20 is set out in APPENDIX 
C (attached) and recommended to Committee. 

 END

Page 36



Cultural & Economic Services Committee   10 December 2018   Agenda Item 12
                                                                                                                 APPENDIX B
EMR (970)  Information / rationale Remaining
(9018)
Economic 
Development
£28,914

Spend / allocations to date: 

Committee endorsed spend for 2018/19:
- Children’s Trail (as above 3.1) allocation of £2,600.
- Market promotion & trader recruitment activity of
  £4,000 

Town Centre Benchmarking Survey £3,300

Recommend carry over remaining funds to continue 
to fund town centre focused activity, e.g. reprinting 
of shopping directory, changes of town lap post 
banners, etc.

Less

£2,600

£4,000

£3,300

=£19,014
Remaining 
to allocate

(9019) 
Best Bar None
£7,959

Committee endorsed – partnership funding to be 
used to deliver the award scheme. Allocated

£-0-

(9020) TACTIC
£11,329

Spend / allocations to date: 

RELATE payment

Reimbursed funds from RELATE £1,360 to be 
reallocated to new service provider till 31/03/18. 
(Plus, grant of £2,000 from Tesco Bags scheme – 
total £3,939)

Ad hoc committed spend, e.g.  signage, at 
£1,1394.95

Recommend carry over remaining funds for ongoing 
activity, building upkeep / maintenance and 
contracted services.

Less

£576

£ tbc

£1,394.95

=£9,358.05
Remaining 
to allocate 

(9022)
Community 
Access 
Defibrillators
£2,595

Un-used budget is rolled forward to facilitate 
maintenance, electricity supply and kit re-stock 
costs. To cover the remaining 7 years of the 
equipment’s life span. 

Recommend carry over remaining funds for ongoing 
re-stock, repairs and maintenance as per original 
committee aims for this earmarked reserved budget.

=£2,595
Remaining 
to allocate

(9026)
Cultural & 
Economic 
Services
£39,700

Recommend carry over remaining funds to fund/ 
contribute to fund projects, e.g. for ongoing signage 
repairs and improvements such as Wi-Fi / heritage 
trail / pigeons (and emerging Council strategic 
objectives). 

= £39,700
Remaining
to allocate

Page 37



Cultural & Economic Services Committee   10 December 2018   Agenda Item 12
                                                                                                                 APPENDIX B

(9027)
Town Centre 
Management 
£2,833

Spend / allocations to date: 

2018/19 anticipated spend on town centre bench 
repairs at £2,028.88

Should be spent this year.

Less

£2,028.88

=£804.12
Remaining 
to allocate

(9028)
Signage – 
proposed 
allocation of 
£4,865

Committee endorsed to continue improving town 
centre signage.

Friday Street/ Ropa Court spend £308. Completed
Market signage to date £243.96
Signage repairs £439.25
Column sign £45

Recommend carry over remaining funds for ongoing 
signage repairs and improvements

Less

£308
£243.96
£439.25
£45

=£3,828.79 
Remaining 
to allocate

(9055)
Public 
Conveniences
£53,881

Committed for refurbishment works. 
Spend to date £42,856.51 (estimate final spend 
£51k)
Recommend carry over remaining funds for ongoing 
maintenance and contribution towards installation of 
Changing Places facilities.

Less
£51,000

£3,881
Remaining 
to allocate

(9044)
Christmas 
Festival
£2,134

Committed to use for 2018 event - carried over from 
previous year.

Allocated 
to 2018 
event
£-0-

(9057)
Community 
Projects
£28,029

Committee endorsed - £2,000 for use in 2018/19 for 
the WWI Centenary Remembrance activity. 
(£1,913.75 used)

Awarded to Rotary Club - £1,500 (Ref. 127/CE)

Remaining budget allocated to enhance the events 
programme with additional time and expenditure at 
Canal Festival, Band Concerts & Live TV Screening 
in financial years 2019/20, 2020/21 & 2021/2022. 
(Ref. 140/CE)
(To review these changes after the first year before 
continuing for the remaining two years.) 
1yr = £7,500 / 3yrs £22,500
Recommend carry over as per Committee endorsed 
expansion of community events over 3 years, 
remaining funds to facilitate community projects / 

Less
£1,913.75

£2,500

£22,500

£1,115.25
Remaining
to allocate

Page 38



Cultural & Economic Services Committee   10 December 2018   Agenda Item 12
                                                                                                                 APPENDIX B

contributions.

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leighton-Linslade Town Council 

 

Internal Audit Report 2018-19: Interim update 

 

 

  

 

 

Adrian Shepherd-Roberts 
 

 

For Auditing Solutions Ltd 

Page 41

Agenda Item 11



  2 

 

This report has been prepared for the sole use of Leighton-Linslade Town Council. To the fullest extent permitted by law, no 

responsibility or liability is accepted by Auditing Solutions Ltd to any third party who purports to use or rely, for any reason 

whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions. 

 

Background 

 

All town and parish councils are required by statute to make arrangements for an independent 

internal audit examination of their accounting records and system of internal control and for 

the conclusions to be reported each year in the Annual Return. Auditing Solutions Ltd has 

provided this service to Leighton-Linslade Town Council since 2007. 
 

This report sets out the work undertaken in relation to the 2018-19 financial year to date, 

which took place on 8th November 2018 and 24th & 25th January 2019 together with the 

matters arising and recommendations for action, where appropriate.  

 

Internal Audit Approach  

 

In undertaking our review for the year to date, we have had regard to the materiality of 

transactions and their susceptibility to potential mis-recording or misrepresentation in the 

year-end Statement of Accounts/Annual Return. We have employed a combination of 

selective sampling techniques (where appropriate) and 100% detailed checks in a number of 

key areas in order to gain sufficient assurance that the Council’s financial and regulatory 

systems and controls are appropriate and fit for the purposes intended. 

 

Our programme of cover has been designed to afford appropriate assurance that the Council’s 

financial systems are robust and operate in a manner to ensure effective probity of 

transactions and to afford a reasonable probability of identifying any material errors or 

possible abuse of the Council’s own and the national statutory regulatory framework. The 

programme is also designed to facilitate our completion of the ‘Annual Internal Audit Report’ 

in the Council’s Annual Return, which requires independent assurance over a number of 

internal control objectives.  

 

Overall Conclusion  

 

We are pleased to conclude that, in the areas examined to date, the Council continues to have 

effective systems in place to help ensure that transactions are free from material misstatement 

and will be reported accurately in the Annual Return and detailed Statement of Accounts for 

the financial year. 

 

However, we identified one area at this interim update visit where we consider that further 

improvements in the overall internal control environment are required. Details of the matter 

identified during the course of the audit visit is set out in the body of the report, with the 

recommendation arising from our visit further summarised in the appended Action Plan.  

 

We are also pleased to record that Council members and officers continue to operate a sound, 

pro-active approach to risk management and corporate governance issues, together with the 

development and management of effective internal controls and procedural documentation. 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 42



  3 

 

Leighton Linslade TC: 2018-19 

Interim update 

24 & 25-1-19 Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

Detailed Report 
 

Review of Accounting Arrangements & Bank Reconciliations 
 

Our objective here is to ensure that the accounting records are being maintained accurately 

and currently and that no anomalous entries appear in cashbooks or financial ledgers. To that 

end, we have: - 

➢ Checked and ensured that the closing balances have been correctly rolled forward as 

opening balances for 2018-19 in the Omega software; 

➢ Checked to ensure that a comprehensive, meaningful and appropriate nominal ledger 

coding schedule remains in place; 

➢ Checked and agreed transactions in the Council’s main combined Current and 

Reserve account cashbook to the relevant NatWest bank account statements for 

September and December 2018 including the daily “sweep” transfers;  

➢ Similarly, checked and agreed all transactions in the Council’s supplementary 

NatWest Special Interest-Bearing account cashbook to the relevant bank statements 

for September and December 2018; and 

➢ Checked detail on bank reconciliations for all accounts as at 30th September and 31st 

December 2018 to ensure that no long-standing uncleared cheques or other anomalous 

entries exist. 

 

Conclusions 

 

We are pleased to report that no issues worthy of formal note have been identified in this 

area. We will undertake further work at our final visit.  

 

Review of Corporate Governance  
 

Our objective is to ensure that the Council has robust corporate governance documentation 

and processes in place; that Council and Committee meetings are conducted in accordance 

with the adopted Standing Orders and that, as far as we are able to ascertain, no actions of an 

“ultra vires” nature have been or are being considered for implementation. We have: - 

➢ Examined the minutes of the Full Town Council and its Standing Committee meetings 

(except Planning) for the year to December 2018 to ensure that no issues affecting the 

Council’s financial stability either in the short, medium or long term exist;  

➢ Noted that Standing Orders (SOs) approved in January 2015 have been under review 

and we have been advised that recommendations are being made to the Full Council at 

its January 2019 meeting.  

➢ Also noted that The Council completed a Risk Management and Internal Control 

Statement at its meeting on 16th April 2018; and 

➢ Noted that revised Finance Regulations (FRs) were approved on 30th April 2018 by 

Full Council. 

 

Page 43



  4 

 

Leighton Linslade TC: 2018-19 

Interim update 

24 & 25-1-19 Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

Conclusions  

 

We are pleased to report that no issues have been identified in this area warranting further 

comment. We will undertake further work at our final visit. 

 

Review of Expenditure 
 

Our aim here is to ensure that: -  

➢ Council resources are released in accordance with the Council’s approved procedures 

and budgets; 

➢ Payments are supported by appropriate documentation, either in the form of an 

original trade invoice or other appropriate form of document confirming the payment 

as due and/or an acknowledgement of receipt, where no other form of invoice is 

available; 

➢ An official order has been raised for all purchases and service delivery where one 

would be expected; 

➢ All discounts due on goods and services supplied are identified and appropriate action 

taken to secure the discount; 

➢ The correct expense codes have been applied to invoices when processed; and 

➢ VAT has been appropriately identified and coded to the control account for periodic 

recovery. 

 

We have continued testing in this area, examining all those payments individually in excess 

of £5,000, together with a more random selection of each 60th cashbook transaction 

irrespective of value to December 2018. Our test sample includes 80 payments totalling 

£679,843 and equating to 49% of all non-pay related payments for the year to date.   

 

We note that the submission of the VAT Returns to December 2018 have been undertaken in 

a timely manner utilising HMRC’s “on-line” facility and have we verified the details therein 

to the ledger control account.  

 

Conclusions  

 

We are pleased to record that no significant control issues have been identified from our 

testing in this area, with all criteria met. We will undertake a further review at our final 

visit. 

 

Assessment and Management of Risk 
 

Our aim here is to ensure that the Council has put in place appropriate arrangements to 

identify all potential areas of risk of both a financial and health and safety nature, whilst also 

ensuring that appropriate arrangements exist to monitor and manage those risks identified in 

order to minimise the opportunity for their coming to fruition. We note that the Council: 

➢ Revised financial risk assessments for 2018-19, based on the LCRS software, was 

made earlier this year and approved by Full Council; and  

Page 44



  5 

 

Leighton Linslade TC: 2018-19 

Interim update 

24 & 25-1-19 Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

➢ Maintain their insurance with Ecclesiastical and Chubb: We have examined the 

current year’s policies schedule to June 2019, noting that Public and Employer’s 

Liability both stand at £10 million, with Fidelity Guarantee cover at £3 million for any 

one loss.  

 

Conclusions 

 

No issues arise in this area warranting formal comment or recommendation.  

 

Precept Determination and Budgetary Control 
 

We aim in this area of our work to ensure that the Council has appropriate procedures in 

place to determine its future financial requirements leading to the adoption of an approved 

budget and formal determination of the amount of the precept placed on the Unitary 

Authority, that effective arrangements are in place to monitor budgetary performance 

throughout the financial year and that the Council has identified and retains appropriate 

reserve funds to meet future spending plans.  

 

We have been advised that Council is in the process of reviewing its 2019-20 budgetary 

requirements we shall consider the action taken and outcomes, together with the approved 

level of precept at our final visit.  

 

We are pleased to note that members continue to receive regular budget monitoring reports 

with over/under-spends and the level of earmarked reserves the subject of regular review.  

 

Conclusions 

 

We have been advised that the Council are to formally consider and finalise its budget and 

precept requirements for 2019-20 later this month. Consequently, we shall review this area 

further at our final visit, also examining the year’s budget outturn, following up any 

significant variances and obtaining appropriate explanations: we shall also consider the 

appropriateness of retained reserves to meet the Council’s ongoing revenue spending 

requirements and any development aspirations. 

 

Review of Income 
 

In considering the Council’s income streams, we aim to ensure that robust systems are in 

place to ensure the identification of all income due to the Council from its various sources, to 

ensure that the income is invoiced (where applicable) in a timely manner and that effective 

procedures are in place to pursue recovery of any outstanding monies due to the Council. We 

have: - 

➢ We have inspected a sample of the limited number of nominal ledger entries posted to 

the Omega control account to ensure their completeness;  

➢ Also noted that a review of the fees for 2019-20 were undertaken by the Grounds and 

Environmental Committee in September 2018; 

➢ As noted elsewhere in this report, we have tested a sample of cashbook receipts from 

Omega records to relevant bank statements for two sample months and have checked 

and agreed all interest arising on periodic Bank Term Deposits; 

Page 45



  6 

 

Leighton Linslade TC: 2018-19 

Interim update 

24 & 25-1-19 Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

➢ At this interim update visit we have reviewed the procedures and management process 

in relation to Astral Park together with the payment and subsequent banking of fees 

and consider that it is managed in a satisfactory manner. 

➢ Reviewed the controls and income generated from the Vandyke Road and Old 

Linslade Cemeteries examining a sample of the burial records for both locations to 

ensure that they were full and complete, that they were appropriately supported by 

funeral director applications and other legal documentation, that the fees and charges 

levied were correct for each interment. No matters arise in this area; 

➢ In relation to Market activity we have reviewed the procedures and note that the 

Manager collects stall holder monies routinely on each market day (Tuesday or 

Saturday). Pre-printed, sequentially numbered duplicate receipts are issued, with a 

spreadsheet acting as a control document of attendees and their payments: this is 

supported by copies of the receipts issued with the cash collected appropriately cross-

checked and banked in a timely manner; and 
 

➢ Examined the “Aged debtors schedule” generated by the accounting software and are 

pleased to record that there are no significant long-standing debts exist of which 

officers and members are unaware 

 

Conclusions and recommendation 

 

We have reviewed the management processes and controls at both Astral Park, Cemetery 

and the Markets and consider that in all areas they are operated in a satisfactory manner, 

We have, however, when reviewing the bookings at Astral Park noted that there are a 

number of evening and week end bookings which would involve increased costs for 

managing the events. The same fee is levied for these bookings and the additional cost of 

overtime and additional expenditure is not accounted for when charging the hirer.   

 

We will undertake further work in this area at our final visit ensuring that income/receipts 

are correctly reported in the Annual Governance & Accountability Return. 

 

R1. Due to the additional cost of managing the evening and weekend room bookings 

Council should consider increasing the fees for such events. 
 

Review of Petty Cash and Fuel Cards 
 

Our aim in this area is to ensure that appropriate controls are in place; that all expenditure 

incurred is adequately supported by trade invoices or till receipts; that the expenditure is 

appropriate for the Council’s requirements; that VAT has been separately identified for 

periodic recovery and that cheque encashments from the main cashbooks are properly 

recorded. 

 

Petty cash accounts are operated at several locations: we have at this interim update visit 

examined the procedures in place for the main petty cash account holding at The White 

House and Astral Park, both are operated on an Imprest basis with a float of £250 

respectively. Our test sample covered transactions for the period for January 2019 and are 

pleased to report that all were appropriately supported by a copy invoice or till receipt. We 

have also verified the physical cash holdings with no issues arising.  

 

Page 46



  7 

 

Leighton Linslade TC: 2018-19 

Interim update 

24 & 25-1-19 Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

We have as part of our “Review of Expenditure”, examined a sample of payments made 

through use of Fuel Cards and noting that fuel card forecourt receipts are checked and are 

attached to the relevant statements.  

 

We have also, as part of our “Review of Expenditure”, examined a sample of payments made 

through use of the credit cards and noting that receipts are checked and are attached to the 

relevant statements and VAT posted appropriately.  

 

Conclusions  

 

There are no matters requiring formal comment or recommendation in this area of our 

review process at this present time. We will review the year end income figures to ensure 

that they are correctly reported in the Annual Governance and Accountability Return at or 

final visit. 
 

Salaries and Wages 
 

In examining the Council’s payroll function, we aim to confirm that extant legislation is 

being appropriately observed as regards adherence to the Employee Rights Act 1998 and the 

requirements of HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) in relation to the deduction and 

payment over of income tax and NI contributions and LGPS pensions. To meet these 

objectives, we have examined the payroll procedures in place and the physical payments 

made to staff in 2018-19 by reference to the September 2018 payroll documentation taking 

into account the revised pay scales approved for April 2018. The payroll continues to be 

produced by third party, external bureau providers utilising appropriate bespoke payroll 

software. Our work included: - 

➢ Ensuring that the Council had approved employee pay rates for the financial year and 

that these have been duly and accurately applied;  

➢ Checking to ensure that appropriate PAYE tax codes are being applied in 2018-19; 

➢ Checking to ensure that national insurance deductions have been computed accurately 

depending on whether the employee was a member of the pension scheme or not; 

➢ Checking that the correct scales of superannuation deductions, based on the revised 

LGPS arrangements, were being applied where appropriate; 

➢ Ensuring that appropriately signed and approved timesheets and mileage claims are 

submitted by all employees in support of any flexible hours worked or claimed as 

overtime or for expenditure re-imbursement; 

➢ Verifying detail of the net salary payments made by comparison with the summary 

reports and payslips to the monthly BACS settlement; and 

➢ Ensuring that payment to third parties of Tax, National Insurance and Pension 

deductions are made in a timely and accurate manner;  

Conclusions  

 

We are pleased to report that no issues arise from our testing in this area warranting 

formal comment or recommendation. 

 

Page 47



  8 

 

Leighton Linslade TC: 2018-19 

Interim update 

24 & 25-1-19 Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

Investments and Loans 
 

Our objectives here are to ensure that the Council is “investing” surplus funds, be they held 

temporarily or on a longer term basis in appropriate banking and investment institutions, that 

an appropriate investment policy is in place and that the Council is obtaining the best rate of 

return on any such investments made and that interest earned is brought to account correctly 

and appropriately in the accounting records.  

➢ We have, checked the detail of the interest bearing accounts and agreed all relevant 

maturities, re-investments and interest arising to December 2018 to their third party 

advice notes, bank statements and other appropriate correspondence; and 

➢ We have also checked and agreed the first instalment repayment of the existing 

PWLB loans from the cashbook payments to their third party, direct debit advice 

notes. 

 

Conclusions 

 

No issues have currently arisen in this area to warrant any formal recommendations. We 

will undertake further work at our final visit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



  9 

 

Leighton Linslade TC: 2018-19 

Interim update 

24 & 25-1-19 Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

 
Rec. 

No. 

Recommendation Response 

Review of Income  

R1 Due to the additional cost of staffing the evening and weekend room bookings Council should consider 

increasing the fees for such events. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 50



 
 

Central Bedfordshire Council 
Priory House, Monks Walk 
Chicksands, Shefford 
Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ 

 
Telephone 0300 300 8000 
Email customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Sent to: Clerk & Chairman to the Town Councils of : 
 
Ampthill, Arlesey, Biggleswade, Dunstable,  
Flitwick, Houghton Regis, Leighton Linslade, 
Potton, Sandy, Shefford & Stotfold 
 
 

 
 

 

  
      Date   5th February 2019 

  

Dear Clerk to the Council, 
 

Future High Street Fund  

As you are probably aware in the 2018 Autumn Budget, Government announced £675M to 
support investment in high streets and town centres through the Future High Street Fund. 
 
The Fund, which is aimed at ensuring high streets are fit for the future, was launched just 
after Christmas, with details being provided on the application process and fund criteria. The 
deadline for Expressions of Interest (EOI) for the first round is 22nd March 2019, with a further 
round anticipated in 2020.  
 
The Fund requires that principal authorities only put forward a single, transformative 
submission covering one high street or town centre in the area, or if a sufficiently robust 
strategic business case is made, then the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) may consider applications which deliver interventions across a number 
of locations. 
 
Currently the criteria against which submissions will be judged is not clear, and we have 
sought clarity on this, as well as that there will be further bidding rounds. The resource 
implications in developing a robust, evidenced and co-funded EOI that is under-pinned by 
comprehensive stakeholder engagement within this relatively short timescale is significant.  
Therefore, Central Bedfordshire Council will not submit an EOI in round 1, but rather will look 
to develop proposals for round 2.  At which point the criteria should be clearer. We believe 
this will allow time to engage all interested stakeholders, identify and assess options, that will 
give a greater probability of success and meaningful interventions being taken forward. 
 
We are committed to working collaboratively with Town Council’s and stakeholders who are 
interested in exploring this opportunity. If you are interested, it would be helpful if you could 
register your interest with Stephen Mooring, Head of Place Delivery at 
stephen.mooring@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk, by the end of February 2019.  
 
 

/ Cont’d ….. 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 12

mailto:stephen.mooring@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk


 
 

Central Bedfordshire Council 
Priory House, Monks Walk 
Chicksands, Shefford 
Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ 

 
Telephone 0300 300 8000 
Email customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 

/ Cont’d ….. 
 
Page 2 
 
 
More details about the Future High Street Fund can be found at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/future-high-streets-fund/future-high-street-
fund. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Councillor Nigel Young 
Executive Member, Regeneration & Business 

Page 52

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/future-high-streets-fund/future-high-street-fund
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/future-high-streets-fund/future-high-street-fund


Page 53

Agenda Item 13



Page 54


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN
	7 COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE
	COMMS Astral Park
	COMMS Leighton Buzzard Market
	COMMS Leighton Linslade Monthly figures
	COMMS Tactic

	8 I.T. UPDATE
	9 REVIEW OF TOWN COUNCIL/EMPLOYEE MEMBERSHIPS
	10 EARMARKED RESERVES
	Budget report Appendix B

	11 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT
	12 FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND
	      Date: 
	Future High Street Fund
	Councillor Nigel Young
	Executive Member, Regeneration & Business

	13 POLICE CRIME COMMISSIONER CORRESPONDENCE

